
City of Springfield 
 

RFP Technical Assistance  
Workshop 



Public Procurement 

• Massachusetts State Laws require that 
municipalities utilize a fair, open and 
competitive procurement to dispose of 
publicly owned property. 

• Direct sales to buyers not permitted, except 
for property valued under $35,000.00 or to 
inter-governmental entities.  



Auction vs. Request For Proposals 

Auction 
• Property sold to highest bidder 
• No evaluation of re-use or qualifications 
RFP 
• Sealed proposals submitted by interested purchasers 
• Proposals reviewed by a committee 
• Proposed re-use, qualifications, project readiness, etc., 

are major factor in award 
• Price offered is a consideration but not the 

determining factor.  City may sell to someone other 
than lowest bidder! 

 



How does the City advertise RFP 
property sales? 

• Newspaper legal ads 

• Tax Title email list 

• City of Springfield website 









 



 



 



 



Responding to an RFP  

Step 1 – Obtaining a copy of the RFP 
You must pick-up or request an official copy of the RFP from 
the Office of Procurement:   

Springfield City Hall  
36 Court Street, Room 307 

Springfield, MA  
413-787-6284 

Request Online: 
https://www.springfield-

ma.gov/finance/procurement/bid_inquiry.php 
• You will also need to submit your contact information so 

the City can contact you regarding the solicitation. 
 

https://www.springfield-ma.gov/finance/procurement/bid_inquiry.php
https://www.springfield-ma.gov/finance/procurement/bid_inquiry.php
https://www.springfield-ma.gov/finance/procurement/bid_inquiry.php


Responding to an RFP 

Step 2 – Read the RFP 
The City is required to spell out all important information in the RFP.  This 
includes: 
• When and how RFPs can be obtained 
• Pertinent property information 
• The end goal the City hopes to achieve 
• Any site tours 
• If there are development incentives or conditions 
• Minimum bids, if applicable 
• Anticipated schedule 
• How potential purchasers can submit questions 
• Deadlines for submissions and what MUST BE INCLUDED within your 

submission 
• Evaluation criteria and information on who will complete the review 
• All other pertinent information 
• The City isn’t allowed any surprises! 

 



Responding to an RFP 

Step 3 - Attend a site tour 

• The City must allow all potential purchasers 
equal opportunity to view properties.  

• If the City is opening the property for viewing 
and you are serious about responding, it is 
crucial to attend a site tour. How can you 
submit an adequate development plan or 
budget without seeing the property? 



Responding to an RFP 

Step 4 – Questions 
• If you have thoroughly read through the solicitation and you still have 

questions.  You should submit those questions IN WRITING by the 
deadline. 

• Questions can be submitted via fax, email or snail mail.  
Lauren Stabilo, Chief Procurement Officer 

Springfield City Hall  
36 Court Street, Room 307 

Springfield, MA  
413-787-6284 

lstabilo@springfieldcityhall.com 
 

• The City will respond to all questions IN WRITING.  To ensure fairness and 
openness the City is required to provide a copy of responses to everyone 
that has requested an official copy of the RFP.  

 

mailto:lstabilo@springfieldcityhall.com


Responding to an RFP 

Step 5 – Develop your plan 
• How do you intend to re-use the property? Is that re-use permitted? 
• Does the property need work? Do you have a budget? Are you qualified to put together the 

budget? If not, do you have a contractor or architect who can? How will you obtain funding to 
complete the necessary work? 

• Will you complete the work yourself? If not, have you identified a qualified and licensed contractor 
to do the work? 

• Will you manage the project yourself, do you have experience and capacity to do so? If not, do you 
have a development team? Does the team have development experience and capacity to do so? 
Who do you need to assemble to do so? 

• How much time will you need to begin and complete the project? 
• What will you offer for purchase price? 
• If you are proposing selling the property after you complete the work, do you have a way of 

assembling appropriate comparables? 
• If you are proposing a rental re-use, have you determined the rents you can charge once the work is 

completed? Do you have the ability to prepare a rental pro-forma to lay out your anticipated 
income and expenses or will you need to hire someone to do it?  

• Review the evaluation criteria provided in the RFP.  Do you meet that criteria?  If not, how can you 
better craft your plan or team to meet that criteria? 

• Do you need to do additional due diligence? 



 

Project Specific 
Information 



Project Specific Information Cont. 

 

 

 

 



Responding to an RFP 

Step 6 – Putting together your proposal 
• The plan you put in your proposal matters, it matters far 

more than the offer price.  
• Your proposed re-use, schedule, budget/funding, 

comparable experience, development team are the meat of 
your proposal. The City is looking for proposals that are 
feasible and that fit within the goals for that property and 
neighborhood. 

• More information is always better than less information.  
• You should go through the list of requested items in the RFP 

and ensure that you are including details information and 
backup documentation to support each of those requests.  



Comparative Evaluation Criteria 

• Read the evaluation criteria, they are 
important. 

• A committee actually sits down and scores 
each proposal against the criteria included in 
the RFP 

• The evaluation criteria is what determines if 
and which bidder will be awarded preferred 
developer status.  



Responding to an RFP 

 

 







Development Plan 

• Should include a very detailed description of what you plan to do and why 
it is a good project that compliments the existing neighborhood. 

• Are you rehabbing a historic property, talk about what you intend to do to 
ensure you meet historic standards and your intentions of going before 
the historic commission. 

• If you are proposing owner-occupancy, it should be included.  That almost 
always gets extra points. 

• Does your project involve some kind of educational, community or public 
service program.  Give details on why it is a good fit for the property and 
the neighborhood and on the population that will be served. 

• Give details on how you will handle parking. 
• If the project needs zone changes or conservation commission approval 

you should be prepared to discuss how you intend to comply.  
• Does your project involve an environmental component like UST, 

contaminated soil or lead abatement, explain how you will appropriately 
deal with these issues.  





Project Schedule 

• It should be reasonable, but also allow time to 
include all of the steps of the project.   

• It should foresee lag times due to utility 
connections, zone changes, permits, special 
permits, cold weather, etc. 

• If applicable it should include time for historic 
or conservation approvals.  

• If you are applying for things like tax credits, it 
should include applicable timelines.  



Project Budget 

• Budget should include all necessary components of the 
project, including 
– Hard costs: Rehab/Construction costs 
– Soft costs: Legal Fees, Recording fees, marketing, planning, etc. 
– Acquisition price 
– Your proposed funding and how you intend to use that funding 

aka “Sources and Uses”. 

• Your sources of funding should always meet or exceed your 
uses of funding.   

• Budgets should be backed up with documentation to show 
your funding, including firm financing commitments, proof 
of line of credit/commitment letter from the bank/proof of 
developers cash/equity. 
 







Rehab Plan 

• Rehab plan should be tailored to the property you are submitting a 
proposal for, this is why attending site visits are important.  

• Rehab plan should be completed or reviewed by a licensed 
contractor that is familiar with the site and has comparable 
experience.  

• Rehab plan should include all pertinent hard costs associated with 
bring the building to code.  That includes big items like foundation 
repair, roof, HVAC, windows to small items like cabinets, fixtures, 
doors, etc.  

• The City’s rehab specialist reviews the rehab plan.  He has reviewed 
thousands of rehab plans and can tell pretty quickly which ones 
have been done by qualified professionals and which ones haven’t. 

• Rehab plan should also include things like landscaping, sidewalks, .  
• Rehab plan should have a reasonable contingency for unanticipated 

expenses.  There is ALWAYS unanticipated expenses.  



Sample Rehab Plan 



Rehab 
Plan 

details 



Example 2 



Developer Experience and Capacity 

• Do you have experience in the type of project you are 
submitting a proposal for? 

• If your answer is yes, good. You should still provide 
information on the contractor, lawyer, you intend to use.  

• If your answer is no, or not much.  Then it is crucial you 
assemble a good development team that can make up for 
your lack of experience.  A good development team could 
include a contractor or architect that has extensive 
experience. It could include a consultant, project manager 
or lawyer that will guide the project.  It could also include a 
partner that has applicable experience. 

• This matters significantly for more complicated projects and 
projects that include federally funded development 
incentives. 



Developer and Development Team 
Experience and Capacity 

• Detail includes: 
– Summary of past comparable projects (including 

locations) 
– Photos and details of projects 
– Years of experience 
– Development team resumes 
– If you are applying for development incentive funds, 

should demonstrate team members experience 
utilizing public funds.  

– If you are applying to purchase and rehab a historic 
project, you should explain your team’s knowledge 
and experience with the restoration of historic 
properties.  

 







Development Team Experience 











Resale and Comparables 

• If you are proposing to re-sell the property once 
the rehab is completed to someone who can 
meet owner-occupancy requirement or you are a 
for-profit developer - re-sale price is an important 
factor in determining what you can allow for 
development costs.  

• It is important to include relevant comparables to 
show both cost reasonableness and to show that 
you have a re-sale plan.  





Responding to an RFP 

Final Step – Submit Your Proposal 

• Submit your proposal by the deadline. 

• Proposal should be sealed and submitted to 
the Office of Procurement.  

• All RFPs include a very specific deadline with a 
deadline time.  Proposal MUST be submitted 
by that time with all included forms or it 
cannot be accepted.  

 



CDBG Funding 

• Utilizing federal funding in a rehab project adds a 
significant layer of complexity to a project. 

• Developer will need to demonstrate that their project 
is feasible and all costs are reasonable.  

• The City must agree that costs are reasonable and will 
have a rehab specialist do inspections and a cost 
reasonableness review.  

• The City may require that developer obtain additional 
quotes from contractors.  

• They will need to maintain significant documentation 
throughout the life of the project and will need to 
submit significant documentation to the City.  



CDBG Funding 

• The City prefers people who have an understanding of how 
to utilize these funds correctly, but will award to people 
who demonstrate a capacity to comply.  

• The development incentive is intended to be gap funding, 
to help fill the void between real property value and rehab 
cost.  Funds are not intended to fund the entirety of the 
project.  

• Developers are required to fund costs beyond the 
development incentive 

• required to submit proof of funding for the non-city funded 
portion of the project. 

• Funds may only be utilized for exterior repairs and/or 
emergency structural repairs.  
 



CDBG Funding 

• When doing residential rehab – lead abatement is 
a requirement.  Developer will have to be 
prepared to have appropriate testing, abatement 
and reporting done and will need to submit proof 
to the City. 

• The City will need to complete an “environmental 
review” prior to the beginning of the project. This 
is to ensure the project will not have negative 
environmental impacts, developers may be 
required to produce more detailed plans and 
information before this can be completed. It also 
includes some lag time.  



CDBG Funding 

• Usually the City requires the developer to lay out the 
funds and submit for re-imbursement upon 
completion.  Occasionally, for compelling reasons – 
exceptions can be made.  

• Developers will need to submit source documentation 
– basically proof of costs and proof of payment in order 
to be reimbursed. This will include contractor invoices, 
and cancelled checks. 

• The City will often hold back a percentage of the 
contract for “retainage” to ensure completion of the 
project and submission of all necessary 
documentation. 



Questions?? 



Contact Information 

Office of Procurement   Planning & Economic Development 

Chief Procurement Officer: Lauren Stabilo Tom Mathews 

City Hall, Room 307    70 Tapley Street 

36 Court Street    Springfield, MA  

Springfield, MA     413-787-6020 

413-787-6290    tmathews@springfieldcityhall.com  

lstabilo@springfieldcityhall.com 

     Disaster Recovery/Community  

Office of Housing    Development 

Sr. Program Manager: Julisa Davila-Ramos Tina Quagliato Sullivan 

1600 East Columbus Avenue   36 Court Street, Room 405 

Springfield, MA     Springfield, MA  

413-787-6500    413-750-2114  

Jdavila-ramos@springfieldcityhall.com  tquagliato@springfieldcityhall.com  
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